
1 
 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, June 18, 2019  

 
Chairman Johansen called the June 18, 2019 regular session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website (June 7, 2019), and published in a 
legal newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of June 10, 
2019. In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on June 7, 2019 copies of such 
notice of meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in accordance with 
Article 3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.   
 
The County Board received opinion via email from Corporation Counsel Malone that the initial 
advance written notice, posted and published as described by the Clerk satisfied the applicable 
provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable procedural provisions of the Polk 
County Board Rules of Order.  
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call.  Thirteen 
County Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum. Absent and excused was 
Supervisor Demulling.  Supervisor Nelson joined the meeting at 6:10 p.m. bringing the total 
number of Supervisors present to fourteen. 
 
Chairman Johansen led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a time of reflection. Supervisor Johansen offered a 
time of reflection offering thoughts and wishes for a speedy recovery for Supervisor Demulling 
after his  recent surgery. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor consideration and approval of the Agenda as published. 
Motion (Bonneprise/Jepsen) to adopt the Agenda. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote 
on the motion to adopt the Agenda as published. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Masters/LaBlanc) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice 
vote.  Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda:  Minutes from May 21, 2019 County Board 
session adopted as published. 



2 
 

 
Time was given for public comment.  No Public comment was received by County Board. 
 
Time was given for the County Board Chairperson’s report.  The County Board received 
information regarding meetings and ceremonies attended by the Chair and notification of 
upcoming meetings of the Criminal Justice Collaboration Council scheduled for 6/20/19 at Noon 
and the Wisconsin Counties Annual Conference scheduled for September 22‐24, 2019 in 
Wisconsin Dells. 
 
Time was given for Supervisor’s reports regarding outside meetings attended. Supervisors 
Jepsen and Bonneprise gave updates on outside meetings attended. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Osborne for the Administrator’s report. The 
County Board received an update regarding the status of Green Whey.  Village of Turtle Lake 
will not be purchasing Green Whey at this point. The County Board received updates on the 
State of Wisconsin Budget process regarding budget items approved by the joint finance 
committee that impact the County’s budget. The vote on the final approval of State of 
Wisconsin budget is pending.   
 
The County Board received information from Administrator Osborne regarding Polk County’s 
budget process and deadlines.  
 
The County Board received information from Administrator Osborne regarding a letter received 
from a citizen stating concerns about the Board of Adjustment. Administrator Osborne noted 
changes have been made to the Board of Adjustment to address previous issues including: new 
procedure for screening Board of Adjustment candidates by Environmental Services 
Committee, elimination of automatic re‐appointments to Board of Adjustment, change in some 
committee members, implementation of a Code of Conduct for all citizen committee members, 
and changes implemented in regard to site visits. In addition, Administrator Osborne and 
Corporation Counsel have attended all recent Board of Adjustment meetings and noted a high 
level of professional decorum during the meetings. 
 
The County Board received a hand‐out and information from Community Services Director 
Tonya Eichelt regarding plans for a Centralized Reception area for Behavioral Health and Public 
Health. 
 
The County Board received an update on the Fairgrounds study from Administrator Osborne. 
Cedar Corporation will be in attendance at the Polk County Fair and submit the Fairgrounds 
study results in August.  
 
The County Board received an update regarding the Clam Falls Dam from Administrator 
Osborne.  Representatives from Renewable World Energies and Northwestern Wisconsin 
Electric will attend the July Board of Supervisors meeting and have indicated they do not want 



3 
 

to complete the study on the Clam Falls dam if Polk County does not intend to take ownership 
of the dam.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to convene as Committee of the Whole at 6:50 p.m.  
Motion (Jepsen/Route) to convene as Committee of the Whole. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on said motion. Motion to convene as Committee of the Whole carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Committee of the Whole engaged in discussion regarding prioritization of budget items and 
policy issues as identified by committees. 
   
Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Osborne regarding the prioritization of budget 
items. Administrator Osborne called upon County Planner Tim Anderson to assist with the 
prioritization process. The Committee of the Whole received information from County Planner 
Tim Anderson regarding the process of establishing and ranking priorities for Polk County as 
identified by each committee. The prioritization of policy issues identified by the County Board 
guides the Administrator and County departments in the annual budget process. Supervisors 
ranked their top five priorities of the issues identified. County Planner Anderson will tally and 
report the results. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn Committee of the Whole session and 
reconvene in legislative session of the Board.  Motion (Bonneprise/Larsen) to adjourn 
Committee of the Whole session. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to 
adjourn and reconvene in legislative session. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Committee of the Whole adjourned 7:23 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen called the County Board back into legislative session at 7:23 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 24‐19:  Resolution to Accept Donation of 
Land from Robert Johnson.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 24‐
19. Motion (O’Connell/Olson) to adopt Resolution No. 24‐19. Chairman Johansen called upon 
Supervisor O’Connell to provide information to the County Board regarding the resolution. 
County Board engaged in discussion regarding the resolution. Supervisor Prichard noted that 
the County should not be responsible for appraisal cost in the interest of best practices. 
Supervisor Masters expressed agreement regarding use of best practices.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 24‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 24‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 24‐19:  Resolution to Accept Donation of Land from Robert Johnson adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 25‐19:  Resolution Authorizing the 
Continuation of the Stower Seven Lakes Trail and the Cattail Trail (Polk County Segment) Master 
Planning Process.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 25‐19. 
Motion (Masters/Route) to adopt Resolution No. 25‐19. Chairman Johansen called upon 



4 
 

Supervisor O’Connell to provide information to the County Board regarding the resolution. 
County Board engaged in discussion regarding the resolution. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 25‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 25‐19 carried by majority voice vote with two dissenting.  
Resolution No. 25‐19:  Resolution Authorizing the Continuation of the Stower Seven Lakes Trail 
and the Cattail Trail (Polk County Segment) Master Planning Process adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 26‐19:  Resolution Encouraging Wisconsin 
Counties Association to Work with Wisconsin State Legislature to Provide for Additional 
Programs for Combating and Treatment of Methamphetamine Abuse.  Chairman Johansen 
called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 26‐19.  
Motion (Jepsen/Bonneprise) to adopt Resolution No. 26‐19. Chairman Johansen called upon 
Supervisor Jepsen to provide information to the County Board regarding the resolution.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 26‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 26‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 26‐19:  Resolution Encouraging Wisconsin Counties Association to Work with 
Wisconsin State Legislature to Provide for Additional Programs for Combating and Treatment of 
Methamphetamine Abuse adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 27‐19:  Resolution to Amend 2019 Budget 
to Incorporate Carry‐Forward Funds from 2018.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 27‐19. Motion (Masters/O’Connell) to adopt Resolution No. 27‐19. 
Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Osborne to provide information to the County 
Board regarding the resolution. Administrator Osborne provided amounts for lines 49 and 53 of 
Resolution No. 27‐19. The amount of $688,337.00 will be added on Line 49 for transfer from 
general fund undesignated fund balance to Department of Children and Families/Department 
of Health Services for operational deficit in 2018 and $907,527.00 will be added on Line 53 for 
amount transferred from Highway Facility Project to general fund undesignated fund balance.   
Board engaged in discussion regarding the resolution. 
 
Motion (Masters/Luke) to amend Resolution No. 27‐19 to add line items in the amount of 
$22,000.00 for replacing the air handler at Recycling Center and $76,000.00 for Government 
Center Security Project carried forward from 2018 budget allocations.  
Supervisor Route referenced concern regarding continued spending and repairs for Recycling 
Center due to aging infrastructure and other issues.  
Supervisor Masters called for a point of order. Chairman Johansen declared discussion was in 
order as it referenced the budget item for the recycling center. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to amend Resolution No. 27‐19 for air 
handler at Recycling Center and Government Center Security Project. 
Motion to amend Resolution No. 27‐19 carried by majority voice vote with three dissenting. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 27‐19 as 
amended. 



5 
 

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 27‐19 as amended carried by majority voice vote with one 
dissenting.  
Resolution No. 27‐19:  Resolution to Amend 2019 Budget to Incorporate Carry‐Forward Funds 
from 2018 adopted as amended.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion for a recess. Motion (Route/Edgell) to take a recess at 
7:52 p.m. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion.  Motion to take a recess 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to reconvene in legislative session at 8:03 p.m. Motion 
(Bonneprise/Masters) to reconvene in legislative session. Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on said motion. Motion to reconvene in legislative session carried by unanimous voice 
vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to convene in Closed Session. 
Motion (Prichard/Luke) to convene in closed session for purposes and on statutory basis 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(g), 19.36(10)(d), 19.85(1)(c) and 19.85(1)(e) and 
as noticed on the agenda.  Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to 
convene in closed session carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 

** Closed Session 8:04 p.m.** (Minutes separate and under seal) 
 

Chairman Johansen asked that the record reflect those present for closed session: Supervisors 
Brad Olson, Doug Route, Tracy LaBlanc, Brian Masters, Chris Nelson, Michael Prichard, Jim 
Edgell, Kim O’Connell, Larry Jepsen, Michael Larsen, Jay Luke, Russ Arcand, John Bonneprise 
and Chairman Johansen.  Also present were, Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Malia Malone, 
Corporation Counsel; and Andrea Jerrick, Deputy Administrator/Employee Relations Director.  
 
*Reconvened in Open session: 9:02 p.m.   
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion in regard to the Village of Luck request for cost sharing 
for repairs of the Butternut Dam. Motion (Masters/Arcand) to reject the Village of Luck request 
for cost sharing for repairs of the Butternut Dam.  
Chairman Johansen called for a roll call vote on said motion.  
Motion to reject the Village of Luck request for cost sharing for repairs of the Butternut Dam  
carried by roll call vote with 11 voting to reject and 3 dissenting (voting no on the motion: 
Supervisors Olson, Route and Nelson).  
 
Time was given for Supervisors announcements.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Bonneprise/Masters) to adjourn. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned 9:08 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  



6 
 

 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 
 











































POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 
WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  

Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 
Tuesday, June 18, 2019 

Regular Business Meeting, 6:00 p.m.  
Open Session 

 
Order of Business: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Time of Reflection 
6. Approval of Agenda  
7. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from May 21, 2019 County 
Board Meeting  

8. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
9. County Board Chair Report 

a. Supervisor’s Reports from Outside Committee Meetings Attended 
10. Administrator’s Report, Nick Osborne 

a.   Green Whey Report 
b.   Budget Process Update 
c.   Board of Adjustment Update 
d.   Centralized Reception 
e.   Other 

**Following the Administrator’s Report, the County Board will convene as the Committee of 
the Whole on matters noticed herein.  The Committee of the Whole may receive information, 
deliberate and provide the County Board with recommendation concerning such noticed 
Subject matters.  The Committee of the Whole may not take final action on such matters.  Once 
the Committee of the Whole adjourns and the County board reconvenes to conduct legislative 
activity, the County Board may take action on such matters noticed herein and recommended 
by the Committee of the Whole, only upon two‐thirds majority vote of members present to 
take up and act upon such matters. 

11. Committee of the Whole:       
a. County Board prioritization of Budget items/policy issues identified by committees 

12. Adjournment of Committee of the Whole 
13. Following adjournment of the Committee of the Whole, the County Board will 

reconvene as a legislative body to take up, consider and act upon the subject matters 
identified herein, as follows: 

14. Reconvene as County Board 
15. Motion to Act on Matters Considered and Recommended by the Committee of the 

Whole, as notice in #11, above. 

1



Polk County Board of Supervisors       

    2 
 

 
 
16. Proposed Resolution and Ordinances: 

On Report and Request of Environmental Services Committee: 
a. Resolution No. 24‐19:  Resolution to Accept Donation of Land from Robert 

Johnson  
b. Resolution No. 25‐19: Resolution Authorizing the Continuation of the Stower 

Seven Lakes Trail and the Cattail Trail (Polk County Segment) Master Planning 
Process 

              On Report and Request of Public Safety & Highway Committee and Health & Human 
Services Board: 

c. Resolution No. 26‐19: Resolution Encouraging Wisconsin Counties Association to 
work with Wisconsin State Legislature to Provide for Additional Programs for 
Combating and Treatment of Methamphetamine Abuse (Signed Resolution Copy 
to follow via email on 6/10/19) 

              On Report and Request of General Government Committee 

d. Resolution No. 27‐19: Resolution to Amend 2019 Budget to Incorporate Carry‐
Forward Funds from 2018 

17. Discussion and Possible Action on Cost Share Proposal for Butternut Dam 
18. Performance Evaluation of the County Administrator 
 

**Closed Session** (minutes separate and under seal) 
The Committee may convene in closed session on matters noticed under #17 and #18, as 
follows: 
 

Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(g), the Board may convene in closed 
session to receive a legal opinion from its attorney concerning a litigation strategy that 
the Board may adopt concerning anticipated claims and pending litigation. 
 
Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Sections 19.36 (10)(d) and 19.85(1)(c) and (e), the 
Board may convene in closed session for the purpose of deliberating concerning the 
employment agreement and performance of the County  Administrator.  Any action of 
the Board on such matter will remain closed and or sealed, pursuant to Sections 19.36 
(10)(d). 
 
Following closed session, the Board will convene in open session to give 
announcement of actions taken in closed session and to take up for consideration and 
action matters noticed on this meeting notice.   

    
19. Supervisors Announcements  
20. Adjourn 

 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with 
disabilities wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715‐

2



Polk County Board of Supervisors       

    3 
 

485‐9226) at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable 
accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 

 

3



1 
 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, May 21, 2019  

 
Vice Chairman Luke called the May 21, 2019 regular session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website (May 10, 2019), and published in a 
legal newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of May 13, 
2019. In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on May 10, 2019 copies of such 
notice of meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in accordance with 
Article 3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.   
 
The County Board received opinion via email from Corporation Counsel Malone that the initial 
advance written notice and the amended agendas, posted and published as described by the 
Clerk satisfied the applicable provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable 
procedural provisions of the Polk County Board Rules of Order.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call.  Thirteen 
County Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum. Absent and excused were 
Supervisor Demulling and Chairman Johansen.  Supervisor Olson joined the meeting at 6:10 
p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for a time of reflection. Supervisor Masters offered 
thanks for a good bill of health and to the supervisors for their support. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor consideration and approval of the Agenda as published. 
Motion (Bonneprise/Larsen) to adopt the Agenda. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote 
on the motion to adopt the Agenda as published. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Masters/Jepsen) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Vice Chairman Luke called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice 
vote.  Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda:  Minutes from April 16, 2019 County Board 
session adopted as published. 
 

4



2 
 

Time was given for public comment.  Public comment was received by County Board. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Steve Geiger, Interim Land Director and Supervisor O’Connell 
to provide information to the County Board regarding the Johnson property donation. The 
donated land would be incorporated into the Forestry Plan.  
 
Time was given for the County Board Chairperson’s report. No report was received from the 
Vice Chair.  
 
Time was given for Supervisor’s reports regarding outside meetings attended. Supervisor 
Nelson reported on Northern Region Trail Advisory Council meeting attended and his recent 
trip on the entire Gandy Dancer trail, providing photos depicting minimal trail damage overall. 
Supervisors reported on other meetings attended. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Administrator Osborne to provide information regarding 
appointments. Administrator Osborne announced the appointment of Rose Kromrey to the 
Aging Advisory Committee for the remaining three year term ending December 2021. 
  
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to confirm said appointment. Motion 
(Bonneprise/LaBlanc) to confirm the appointment of Rose Kromrey to the Aging Advisory 
Committee for the remaining three year term ending December 2021. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to confirm said appointment. Motion 
to confirm appointment of Rose Kromrey to the Aging Advisory Committee for the remaining 
three year term ending December 2021 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Administrator Osborne for the Administrator’s report. The 
County Board received information regarding strategic planning. UW Extension and county staff 
will be assisting with priorities and planning.  
 
The County Board received updates regarding the Stower Seven Lakes Trail from Administrator 
Osborne. ARRA funds received of approximately $600,000 would likely have to be repaid if the 
trail is motorized. More follow up will be done to determine exact amount that may have to be 
repaid. Outside expertise/consultant may be brought in to provide assistance with the master 
trail plan.  
 
The County Board received an introduction to new Assistant Corporation Counsel Joseph Loso.  
 
The County Board received information regarding the Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA) 
Program from Corporation Counsel Malone. The program provides a special volunteer advocate 
who assists and represents on behalf of the best interests of children in need who have 
experienced abuse or neglect. The State of Wisconsin has applied for a grant for the CASA 
Program. 

 

5



3 
 

 
The County Board received information regarding a test run of videotaping of the Health & 
Human Services Board meeting from Administrator Osborne. Problems with audio need to be 
resolved to provide a quality recording for the public. County Board received June calendar 
from Administrator Osborne regarding agenda deadlines and due dates. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to convene as Committee of the Whole at 6:42 p.m.  
Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to convene as Committee of the Whole. Vice Chairman Luke called for 
a voice vote on said motion. Motion to convene as Committee of the Whole carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Committee of the Whole engaged in discussion regarding the Clam Falls Dam offer. 
   
The County Board received information from Administrator Osborne and Interim Land Director 
Geiger regarding the background of dams in Polk County. Of 114 dams in Polk County, Polk 
County owns two dams: the Atlas Dam built in 1874, acquired by the County in 1968 and the 
Kennedy Dam acquired in 1973. The County Board received statistics regarding repair costs and 
hazard ratings of Atlas Dam and Kennedy Dam, as well as removal costs of the former Woodley 
Dam.  
 
County Board received information from Scott Geddes, Polk County Land & Water Department 
Engineer regarding the responsibilities of dam ownership. Responsibilities include: Assumption 
of liability of dam and any damages, annual inspection, significant hazard rating requires 
inspections by a consultant every 3 to 4 years, emergency action plan, maintaining inspection 
documents, maintaining level and flow of dam, visits to dam after weather events, and ultimate 
responsibility for future repairs, abandonment and/or removal of dam. 
 
The County Board reached a general consensus that the engineering stability analysis and 
report should be completed before any decisions would be made in regard to ownership of the 
Clam Falls Dam. 
 
Committee of the Whole engaged in discussion and possible recommendations regarding the 
Division Structure, Budgets and Staffing plans. The County Board received information from 
Administrator Osborne regarding the Division Structure.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adjourn Committee of the Whole session and 
reconvene in legislative session of the Board.  Motion (Bonneprise/Larsen) to adjourn 
Committee of the Whole session. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to 
adjourn and reconvene in legislative session. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Committee of the Whole adjourned 7:35 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion for a recess. Motion (Bonneprise/Route) to take a 
recess at 7:35 p.m. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion.  Motion to take a 
recess carried by unanimous voice vote.  

6



4 
 

 
Vice Chairman Luke called the County Board back into legislative session at 7:45 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor Ordinance No. 23‐19:  To Enact Amended Polk County 
Chapter 18 Subdivision Ordinance.  
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 23‐19.  
Motion (O’Connell/Edgell) to adopt Ordinance No. 23‐19.   
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 23‐19 carried by majority voice vote with Supervisor Nelson 
abstaining from voting.  Ordinance No. 23‐19:  To Enact Amended Polk County Chapter 18 
Subdivision Ordinance adopted. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor Resolution No. 22‐19:  Resolution Adopting the Division 
Structure Implementation Plan.  Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 22‐19. Motion (Masters/Bonneprise) to adopt Resolution No. 22‐19. County Board engaged 
in discussion regarding the resolution. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 22‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 22‐19 carried by majority voice vote with one opposed.  
Resolution No. 22‐19:  Resolution Adopting the Division Structure Implementation Plan 
adopted.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for a motion to convene in Closed Session. 
Motion (Masters/Larsen) to convene in closed session for purposes and on statutory basis 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(g) as noticed on the agenda.  Vice Chairman 
Luke called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to convene in closed session carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  
 

** Closed Session 8:02 p.m.** (Minutes separate and under seal) 
 

Vice Chairman Luke asked that the record reflect those present for closed session: Supervisors 
Brad Olson, Doug Route, Tracy LaBlanc, Brian Masters, Chris Nelson, Michael Prichard, Jim 
Edgell, Kim O’Connell, Larry Jepsen, Michael Larsen, Russ Arcand, John Bonneprise and Vice 
Chairman Luke.  Also present were, Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Malia Malone, Corporation 
Counsel; and Andrea Jerrick, Deputy Administrator/Employee Relations Director.  
 
*Reconvened in Open session: 8:14 p.m.   
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion in regard to the Public Administration Associates 
request/offer. Motion (Larsen/LaBlanc) to reject the request/offer from Public Administration 
Associates. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion.  
Motion to reject request/offer from Public Administration Associates carried by unanimous 
voice vote.  
 
Time was given for Supervisors announcements.  
 

7



5 
 

Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Masters/LaBlanc) to adjourn. Vice 
Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  Vice Chairman Luke declared meeting adjourned 8:17 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 

8



COUNTY BOARD PRIORITIES AND RESULTANT KEY STRATEGIES 

WITH BUDGET ALLOCATIONS 

Rank  Area  Budget Allocation or Key Strategies 

1 

Transportation/Road 
Conditions/Infrastructure 

Highway building included in capital budget recommendation 

Recreation/Tourism/Parks 
Additional funding approved for ATV road usage; Additional funding 
for tourism promotion; Funding for electrical systems upgrade for 
County Fair 

Substance abuse problems/issues  Restructuring and improvements to Behavioral Health department 
(includes AODA services) 

Communications and services/Rural 
Broadband 

Funding for 911 system upgrades and reverse 911 system 

New Highway Shop  Included in capital budget recommendations 

2  Economic Development  Additional funding for Polk County Economic Development 
Corporation 

3  Senior Citizens and Veterans 

Increase information and assistance through ADRC 

Offer new cooking and nutrition classes at meal sites 

Expand outreach for veterans 

4 

 

Educational Opportunities 

Lease of County space by Unity School District for non‐traditional 
education program 

Administration initiative to improve Coordination with Indianhead 
Technical College to provide services to residents 

Updating county services for the 
future and improving services 

Funding for 911 system upgrades 

5 

 

Mental Health  Restructuring and improvements to Behavioral Health department 

Maintain and Improve Water 
Quality 

Explore new watershed councils and recruit potential council 
members 

Land use balance  Promote and encourage orderly land use development by guiding a 
strategic planning process 

6 

 

Public Protection  Funding for 911 system upgrades and reverse 911 system 

Relationship of county with 
municipalities‐both positive & 

negative 

Administration initiative to improve communication with cities, 
villages, towns and school districts within Polk County 

7 

 

Marketing and promotion of the 
county 

Additional funding for Polk County Economic Development 
Corporation 

Impact of Stillwater Bridge  Maintain and enhance County GIS Enterprise by using LiDAR datasets 
with increased accuracy to improve land use 

Youth leaving the county 

Administration initiative to improve Coordination with Indianhead 
Technical College to provide services to residents 

Additional funding for Polk County Economic Development 
Corporation 

8  Public health concerns  Release new Community Health Improvement Plan and continue to 
facilitate workgroups that address implementation 

 

9



 
 
 
 

Budget Priorities 
Addendum Attachment for General Government Committee Meeting 

 

Recycling Center‐ Infrastructure, Staffing, and Operational Challenges 

1. Aging equipment both product and facility/ Equipment failure 
2. Staffing Shortage 
3. Determine how to operate recycling center to meet customer needs and adjust to changing 

market 
 

Facilities‐ Infrastructure, Staffing, Long Term Operational Strategies 

1. Develop long term capital plan 
2. Reactive versus proactive maintenance 
3. Staffing shortage 

 

10



Budget Priorities 
 

General Government Division 

 Communicating across generations through multiple modes and mediums 
o Focus on various new or existing technology platforms, yet preserving use of existing 

mediums (layers of communication) 
o Concentrating on the language of our communication to adapt messaging to various 

target groups 

 Significant and long‐term labor market issues – ability to attract and retain right talent and skill 
set 

o Availability of affordable housing 
o Offering of internships, retention/attraction of college‐age to area 
o Provision of cross‐training (internal) to fill gaps 
o Lack of sufficient staffing/resources (internal) for peak workload times (elections) 
o Employee burn‐out 
o Responsive and dynamic total rewards package flexible enough to meet demands of 5 

generation workforce yet affordable and competitive  

 Limitations with existing technology causing barriers in expansion of internal/external customer 
service 

o Telecommuting and flexibility 
o Cost of updating IT systems and infrastructure 
o Demands of public to receive service online, use of credit cards 

 Public knowledge of services County provides  
o Lack of education/public relations geared towards informing and engaging citizens 
o Conflicting dynamics in promotion of County as good place to work – public image 

versus total rewards/engagement of employees 

 Aging county infrastructure  
 

Corporation Counsel/Child Support: 

Substance Abuse Effect on Operations 

1. Increasing CHIPS and TPR case load primarily related to methamphetamine 

2. CHIPS cases staying open longer, also related to methamphetamine 

3. Increase in Indian Child Welfare Act Cases, which are more complex and require more 

time/resources than non ICWA cases, primarily related to the turnover in Indian Child Welfare 

workers for the St. Croix Band of Chippewa Indians.  This is likely to increase considering the 

turmoil facing the tribe currently due to the criminal matters impacting the tribe. 

4. Increase in the request for 3 party petitions (mental commitments initiated by family/friends), 

primarily related to alcohol and methamphetamine 

Responding/Interacting with Public 

5. Delivery of external customer service based upon generational and technological changes: 

11



a. Need to communicate with child support case participants by alternative means (text 

message, Facebook messenger, etc.).  Many case participants do not have voicemail or 

their voicemail is full and they communicate by text message or other means.   

b. Responsiveness to customer needs beyond normal business hours.  Many case 

participants work during the day. 

Updating County Services for the Future and Improving Services 

6. Social and economic barriers to employment for non‐custodial parents (NCP) 

a. Many NCPs do not have valid driver’s license 

b. Poverty/lack of skills/lack of education impeding NCPs ability to secure employment 

c. Lack of availability of employment opportunities that provide a living wage 

Finding and Retaining High Quality Employees 

7. Employee Turnover and succession, and ability to attract new employees 

a. Lack of flexibility to offer compensation packages that are competitive with other 

jurisdictions within commuting distances 

 

12



Budget Priorities  
 

Budget Priorities for Veteran Services 

Technology Limitations 

 

 Filling out forms by hand at home visits 
 

Improving Communication with Outside Agencies 

 Local hospitals and clinics not properly billing VA 
 

Improving Relationships with Other Government Agencies 

 The VA not paying for authorized community care  

 

Community Services Division (CSD) Budget Priorities  

The two core/root issues impacting the Polk County citizens that CSD serves are substance use and 

mental illness. 

The issues of substance abuse and mental illness spawn operational issues for CSD under the categories 

listed below. 

Substance Abuse, Unfunded Mandates 

 CSD’s focus is on helping those currently experiencing issues related to substance use and 
mental illness. As these numbers have increased, staff has been added, but key leadership roles 
have not yet been filled (e.g., DCF Director), and processes/systems are not yet in place to 
assure maximum efficiency and effectiveness.   

 Because the focus is on helping those who currently require mandated services,  primary 

prevention has not been prioritized; consequently some CSD units/depts are in reactive mode, 

and prevention‐focused efforts such as Polk United are have no operational budget. 

Staffing Issues 

 CSD departments such as DCF have experienced dramatic change over the past (year) in terms 
of leadership, scope of work, and staffing. There is concern within DCF that client‐to‐staff ratios 
remain too high; a priority for the new DCF Director will be to determine if process changes can 
deliver increased efficiency. 

 CSD staff could use more training.  This is due to being required to provide mandated services 
that strain staff for time and limit funding. 

 
Technology 

13



 Phone system, information technology, equipment, and office furniture could be more 

functional to improve operations. 

Unmet Community Needs 

● There are unmet community needs in the County/region that have a negative impact on the 
populations that CSD serves, including: 

○ Lack of transportation resources 
○ Lack of low income housing 
○ Lack of local providers/resources such as crisis beds, adult family homes etc. 
○ Lack of local crisis services, especially for children under age 10, vulnerable adults and 

elderly 
○ Lack of services and/or access to services for youth and families not 

mandated/connected to funded programs 
○ Lack of resources for high need and volatile children 
○ Lack of quality and/or regulated child care 

Improve Marketing and Promotion of the County 

● County residents not aware of CSD services including those related to prevention 

 

 

 

 

14



 

Budget Priorities 
Addendum Attachment for Public Safety & Highway Committee 

 
 
Public Works Division 
 
Highway‐ Maintain and Improve Transportation Infrastructure, Staffing, Operational Challenges 

1. Flat levy 
2. County C.I.P., State STP program‐  underfunded mandates 
3. Aging asphalt‐ micro thin overlays done 9‐10 years ago coming due 
4. Public demand for winter road conditions, (bare roads)  
5. Current economy‐limited applicants for positions, more projects than staff time having to 

manage overtime. 
6. Rise in material and Equipment costs. 

 

15



Budget Priorities  
 

 

Circuit Court and Clerk of Courts 

Budget Priorities: 

1. State and local funds are not sufficient to cover program costs- unfunded mandates 

2. Opioid/drug/alcohol related cases have congested the court calendars 

3. Technology investment to improve court operations 

4. Staff pay/Retention  

 

 

Polk County Sheriff’s Office 
 
 Budget Priorities:  
 

• Reduce the risk to and liability of the Polk County Government and the men and 
women of the Polk County Sheriff’s Office through modernization and the 
introduction of best practices to the safety and security of the Polk County Jail.  

 
• Eliminate gaps in coverage and interoperability of communications systems by 

providing effective, modern and P25 standard compliant communications capabilities 
to the men and women of the Polk County Sheriff’s Office as well as external 
stakeholders.  

 
• Increase the safety of the men and women of the Polk County Sheriff’s Office as well as 

the citizens of and visitors to Polk County by upgrading and modernizing essential 
police weapons systems and protective systems  

 
• The Sheriff’s Office is presently unprepared to introduce and employ Incident Based 

Reporting as mandated by both State and Federal requirements  
 

16



Budget Priorities 
 

Addendum Attachment for Environmental Services Committee Meeting on 6/12/19 

 
Lime Quarry‐ Infrastructure and Operational Challenges 
 

1. Equipment is near end of life 
2. Determine how to operate lime quarry to meet customer needs and adjust to changing market 

 

17



Budget Priorities 
 

PARKS, TRAILS AND FORESTRY 

Trails and Parks 

 Quality of responsiveness and service to parks and trails stakeholders due to workload and 

increased demand for service 

 Complete repairs as required and appropriately plan for future Parks needs. 

LAND INFORMATION AND ZONING 

Surveyor/Land Information/GIS  

 Update aging Digital ortho imagery infrastructure, respond to changes in the industry and what 

customers need and expect. 

Zoning  

 Maintain quality services and support policies that lead to improved development practices 

LAND AND WATER RESOURCES 

Protecting Land and Water Assets 

Protect water quality in lakes 

Protect ground water through erosion control and best practices in agriculture 

Protect land and water in Polk County from invasive species 

Register of Deeds 

Technology Challenges 

 Unindexed Scanned Images 

o Scanned images from approximately 1933 to mid‐1995 are imaged, but not indexed.  

o Unindexed documents are unavailable via on‐line Laredo and Tapestry programs by 

grantor/grantee or legal description. 

 

 Unscanned Images Prior to 1935 

o Documents prior to 1933 are not available via on‐line Laredo and Tapestry program. 

o In the event of a natural disaster, these documents would be lost forever. 

18



 

 Lack of Off Site Back‐Up Server for Document Preservation 

o In the event of a cyber‐attack or natural disaster, there is no off site back‐up server that 

I have been made aware of.  My understanding is that our documents are backed up on 

a separate server, but are kept on site.   This puts all of the documents at risk whether it 

be a cyber‐attack or natural disaster. 

 

 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



 

 
 
 

STOWER SEVEN LAKES  
STATE RECREATION TRAIL 

 
POLK COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 
 
 

MASTER PLAN 
June, 2018 

 
  
 

Polk County Environmental Services Committee 
 

Kim O’Connell-Chairman 
Brad Olson -Vice Chairman 

Jim Edgell 
Doug Route 

Tracy LaBlanc 
 
 
 

Department of Natural Resources 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 

 2

Table of Contents 
 
I. INTRODUCTION AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY    
 
II. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES       

A. Goals          
B. Objectives         

 
III. PROPOSED MANAGEMENT AND LAND DEVELOPMENT   
 A. Land Acquisition and Ownership     
 B. Uses of the Trail Corridor      
  1. Encouraged Primary Uses     
  2.  Encouraged Secondary Uses     
  3.  Allowed Uses       
  4.  Prohibited Uses       
 C. Development Program       
  1.  Initial Development      
  2.  Long term Development      
  3.  Development Schedule      
  4.  Development Standards      
 D. Operation & Maintenance Program     
 E. Interpretation        
 F. Wildlife Management       
 G.  Timber and Vegetative Management     
 H. Management Problems       
 I. Recreation Needs and Justification     
 J. Analysis of Services       
 
IV. APPENDIX          
  Map 1-Regional Location       
  Map 2-Polk County   
 A. Memorandum of Agreement-Polk County & State 
   of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources   
 B. Environmental Site Impact Assessment    
 C.  County Board Resolution      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31



 

 3

Introduction and Executive Summary 
 
This draft Stower Seven Lakes Trail Master Plan is a modification of the 2004 
Master Plan in order to reflect current uses allowed and prohibited on the trail. 
Aspects of this draft are currently incomplete and will be developed by the 
Subcommittee, as part of the trail planning process chosen by the Environmental 
Services Committee of the Polk County Board of Supervisors. Throughout the 
process, updates to this plan will be made as decisions are approved by the 
Subcommittee. See the Public Participation section of this plan for more details 
on the process.  
 
This Master Plan represents the strategy of Polk County as well as various trail 
advocates and user groups, and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
(WDNR) for the development, operation, and maintenance of a 13.48 mile 
railroad corridor presently known as the Stower Seven Lakes Trail. The trail is 
located on a former Minneapolis St. Paul and Sault Ste. Marie Railroad right-of-
way which begins two miles east of Dresser and extends into the City of Amery, 
Wisconsin.  Within the City of Amery, the corridor width ranges from 60 feet wide 
to 180 feet wide, whereas in the rural branch of the corridor, the trail width is 
consistently 100 feet wide. The trail consists of approximately 174 acres and 
generally runs in a west to east direction.  Map 1 shows the regional location of 
the trail.  Map 2 shows the location of the trail in Polk County. 
 
The trail right-of-way was acquired from Wisconsin Central Limited in 2003 by the 
WDNR under the Stewardship Program. Subsequently, a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) was signed by the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (WDNR) and the County of Polk (Appendix A).  Under the terms of 
the MOU, the WDNR will grant a trail easement to Polk County as well as 
designate the trail as a “State Trail” under section NR 51.73, Wis. Adm. Code. 
The WDNR will also complete an environmental review of the property pursuant 
to s. 1.11, Stats., and Chapter NR 150, Wis. Adm. Code.  In addition, the WDNR 
will work with Polk County to identify funding sources for the development and 
repair of the trail.   Under this same MOU, Polk County will be responsible for the 
development, operation, repair, and maintenance of the trail.    
 
The trail will be developed in phases depending on trail usage and funding 
availability. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



 

 4

II. Goals and Objectives* 
 

A. Goals:   
 
 Provide and preserve a recreational trail at least 13 miles in length 

stretching from Dresser to Amery. The all-season trail will have a 
dual surface to provide two-way traffic for bicycling, hiking, 
horseback riding and winter snowmobile use. 

 
 B. Objectives: 
  

 To complement present economic benefits of trails existing in Polk 
County and provide opportunities for economic development not 
reflected in current trail usage. 

 
 To provide recreational opportunities that complement present trail 

opportunities in Polk County and provide recreational opportunities 
that presently are underrepresented in the Polk County Trail 
system. 

 
 To enhance opportunities for tourism in Polk County. 

 
 To respect the wishes and investments of landowners and 

communities through which the trail passes. 
 

 To provide for recreational opportunities that promotes the health 
and safety of the community. 

 
 To preserve the rural character and environmental integrity of the 

trail. 
 

 To anticipate the urbanization of the area through which the trail 
passes and provide for possible future use of the trail as an 
alternative transportation system between communities. 

 
 To provide opportunities for the greatest number of projected uses 

of the trail consistent with the previous objectives. 
 
On July 31, 2018 a public hearing was held in Polk County to assess the 
interested public’s desired uses or the trail.  The information gained from these 
public hearings, in combination with information and input from other sources, 
formed the basis for the proposed recreational trail use.  
 
 
 
 

33



 

 5

 
III. Proposed Management and Land Development 
 
 A. Land Acquisition and Ownership 

 
 The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) acquired 

the rail grade right-of-way from the Wisconsin Central Limited by 
means of Stewardship funds. The WDNR has paid all costs to 
acquire the property and will maintain ownership of the entire right-
of-way.  Under the terms of the MOA, the WDNR will convey a non-
exclusive easement to Polk County and other valuable 
consideration.  The WDNR will not issue other easements that will 
adversely affect the use of the property for the intended trail 
purposes.  

 Additional property may be acquired to support trail functions and 
unique ecosystems.  

 
 B. Uses of the Trail Corridor 
 
 1. Encouraged Primary Uses 

o Bicycling 
o Walking, Hiking, Jogging 
o Dog sledding 
o Nature and scenery viewing 
o Snowmobiling: Snow covered periods. When permitted by 

the Polk County Parks department. Only groomed areas 
maybe traveled 
 

   2. Encouraged Secondary Uses 
o Cross country skiing 
o Snowshoeing 
o Horseback riding 

 
3. Allowed Uses  

o Only Administrative and maintenance vehicles  
o Pets: With restrictions including leashes, feces disposal and 

closed areas. 
o Small electric carts used by disabled individuals during 

snow-free periods  
o Vehicles on designated roadways and parking areas may 

operate within the trail corridor. 
o Public Road Crossings: WDNR rules will govern this, and as 

landowner, WDNR will be the primary contact. 
o Private Residential Crossings: WDNR rules will govern this, 

and as landowner, WDNR will be the primary contact.    

34



 

 6

o Private Farm and Recreation Crossings: WDNR rules will 
govern this, and as landowner, WDNR will be the primary 
contact.   

o Other crossings: WDNR rules will govern this, and as 
landowner, WDNR will be the primary contact.   

o Utilities:  WDNR rules will govern this, and as landowner, 
WDNR will be the primary contact.    
 

 4. Prohibited Uses 
o Motorized Vehicles including but not limited to: 
o ATV’s/UTV’s every season 
o Off-highway motorcycles.  
o Hunting and trapping. 
o Camping: Within the trail corridor except in designated 

campsites. 
o Private occupancy. 
o Conducting Business, Promotions or Advertising: Within the 

trail corridor without the express consent of the Polk County 
Environmental Services Committee and the WDNR. 

 
 C. Development Program 
 

1. Initial Development  
 

 The MOU specifies that the development of the trail is the responsibility of 
Polk County.  The WDNR will grant an easement to Polk County for the 
development, maintenance and operation of the trail.  It is understood that the 
WDNR will assist Polk County financially with trail development through available 
grant/aid programs.   
 

Under the terms of the MOU, the trail will be managed by Polk County 
Buildings, Solid Waste and Parks Department.  The planned development was 
phased to allow for orderly and financially affordable development. 

 
  2. Development Standards 
 
 In accordance with the MOU, the trail was developed in compliance with 
the WDNR Design Standards Handbook, WDNR “Snowmobile Trail Signing 
Handbook” (Publ-AA-023), and AASHTO “Guide for the Development of Bicycle 
Facilities” will also be followed.  All structures placed in the WDNR Right-Of-Way 
will need prior WDNR approval. 
 
 Associated facilities, if any, will be designed and constructed in 
compliance with state and local building codes and the American’s With 
Disabilities Act.  
 

35



 

 7

 D. Operation & Maintenance Program 
 
 Polk County will have the primary responsibility for the operation and 
maintenance of the trail in Polk County. The Buildings, Solid Waste and Park 
Department under the direction of the Environmental Services Committee will act 
as the primary agent of the County.  The Friends of the Stower Seven Lakes Trail 
group has been established and will assist in planning and accomplishing the 
operation and maintenance of the trail along with the Polk County Snowmobile 
Council for winter snowmobile use. 
 

The daily operation of the trail will be directed by Chapters NR 45 (State 
Parks and State Forests) and NR 50 (Administration of Outdoor Recreation 
Program Grants and State Aids). These codes will be supplemented by Polk 
County ordinances and park directives. Daily operation is directed and performed 
by the Polk County Buildings, Solid Waste and Park Department and its 
contractors and cooperators. Daily routine enforcement is the responsibility of 
Polk County. 
 
 User fees will not exceed those established in s. 27.01, Stats., and will be 
subject to written approval by the WDNR. The standard state trail bicycle fees will 
be charged and State bicycle trail passes will be honored.   
 
 User information will include maps, brochures and signing that will provide 
facility, service, safety and emergency information, rules, regulations and advice 
on a seasonal basis. 
 
 Trail maintenance is directed and performed by the Polk County Buildings, 
Solid Waste and Park Department and its contractors and cooperators. Primary 
cooperators are the Friends of the Stower Seven Lakes Trail Group who oversee 
trail maintenance. 
 
 E.  Interpretation 
 
 In Polk County the trail offers many opportunities to make trail users more 
aware of the landscape they are traveling through. Opportunities exist to provide 
interpretive information on the geology, the numerous ecosystems, the native 
wildlife, and the cultural history of the area. Interpretation is a long-term objective 
that can be accomplished jointly by Polk County and local interest groups. 
 
 F. Wildlife Management 
 
 The trail passes through many ecosystems and will provide many 
opportunities to observe wildlife. Due to the limited land base, many wildlife 
management opportunities are precluded. Polk County will cooperate with the 
WDNR and other groups interested in wildlife management in making the trail 

36



 

 8

corridor available to wildlife management within the overall objectives of the 
master plan. 
 
 G. Timber and Vegetative Management 
 
 The vegetation adjacent to the trail is representative of the great natural 
diversity that occurs in Northwestern Wisconsin. Most species are native or are 
considered to be naturalized thus requiring little vegetative management. Some 
management will be practiced to promote aesthetics, eradicate invasive species, 
enhance wildlife, protect prairie and oak savannas, and protect trail users and 
facilities. 
 
 H. Management Problems 
 
 A number of management problems have been identified that will need to 
be dealt with as they occur. More may be updated through the trail planning 
process. 
 

 Control of non-allowed uses will be achieved through a combination 
of public information, using Park and Sheriff’s Department 
personnel, and peer pressure as use of the trail increases. 

 Vandalism to signs, bridges and the trail surface will be addressed 
through regular inspections, rapid repair, enforcement, and peer 
pressure as the use of the trail increases. 

 Trail crossings will require much attention. All existing crossing 
agreements will require review and modification to reflect the 
present and future uses. Requests for new crossings will be 
handled on an individual basis in accord with the WDNR 
“Department Design Standards Handbook”. Routine inspection will 
insure compliance to crossing agreements and will ensure control 
of unauthorized crossings. 

 Trespass, both to and from the trail corridor may require the use of 
various control options including planting, fencing, signing, 
surveying and law enforcement. 

 Invasive species management 
 
 I. Recreation Needs and Justification 
 

 Following is Wisconsin’s 2011-2016 Statewide Compliance Outdoor 
Recreation Plan (SCORP) identifying participants by participation rate (Age 
16+), 5 year view of various outdoor recreation activities. The following counties 
are part of the Great Northwest Region: Ashland, Barron, Bayfield, Burnett, 
Douglas, Polk, Rusk, Sawyer, and Washburn. From the input received during 
this process, the following chart shows the identified recreation needs: 

 
 

37



 

 9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J.  Analysis of Services 

 
 The potential need and demand for trail support services and facilities 
such as equipment rental and service, bicycle pass outlets, food, beverages, 
lodging, accessories, memorabilia, etc. will occur to some degree in the future. 
As it is quite difficult to accurately predict either the future use of the trail or the 
corresponding ability of the public sector to respond to it, the recommended 
alternative is (b) public/private cooperation. The public sector will encourage the 
private sector to provide for trail user needs. When necessary, the public sector 
will cooperate in the provisions of support facilities and services. The issue of 
public participation in the provision of the trail support facilities and services 
should be closely reviewed at least every five years and the trail Master Plan 
revised accordingly. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Activity 

2005–2009  Participation 

Number of 
Percent  Participants 

Participating  (1,000s) 

Off‐highway vehicle driving  19.8  891 

Trail running  18.6  773 

Snowmobiling  18.3  824 

Cross country skiing  8.8  396 

Horseback riding on trails  6.6  297 

Snowshoeing  6.1  275 

Inline skating  2.5  113 

Day hiking  36.7  1,652 

Running or jogging  32.1  1,445 

Mountain biking  30.7  1,382 

Sledding  28.2  1,269 

 
 

 
Activity 

20

Pe
Part

Walk for pleasure 

View/photograph  natural  scenery 

Attend outdoor sports events 

Family gathering 

Visit nature centers, etc. 

View/photograph  other  wildlife 

Driving for pleasure 

View/photograph wildflowers, trees, etc. 

38



 

 10

 
 
 

APPENDIX 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



 

 11

Map 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

40



 

 12

 
Map 2 
 
 

 

41



 

 13

APPENDIX A:  MOU 

 

42



 

 14

 

43



 

 15

 

44



 

 16

 

45



 

 17

 

46



 

 18

 

47



 

 19

 

48



 

 20

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49



 

 21

APPENDIX B:  IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 

50



 

 22

51



 

 23

 

52



 

 24

 

53



 

 25

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



 

 26

APPENDIX C: RESOLUTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



 

 27

 
 

56



57



58



59



60


	6-18-19 Board Proceedings
	Minutes 6-18-19
	Res2019 24-19 To Accept Land Donation from Johnson
	Res2019 25-19 Authorizing Continuation of Stower Seven Lakes & Cattail Master Plan
	Res2019 26-19 Methamphetamine Abuse Resolution
	Res2019 27-19 Amend 2019 Budget to Incorporate Carry Forward Funds from 2018
	Certify Minutes June 18 2019

	County Board 6-18-19 Agenda Packet
	County Board Agenda 6-18-2019
	Minutes 5-21-19
	6-19 Budget Priorities
	2019 Budget Priorities 6-11-19
	6-13-19 Facilities and Recyc Budget Priorities 2019
	6-13-19 General Government Division Priorities 2019
	Budget Priorities Veterans and Community Services Division 6-2019
	6-11-2019 PSH Budget Priorities Hwy
	Budget Priorities Sheriff & Clerk of Court 6-2019 mtg
	6-12-19 Budget Priorities Lime Quarry
	6-12-19 Budget Priorities

	Res 24-19 Land Donation
	Res 25-19 Stower Trail
	6-12-19 agenda Stower Master Plan Res.
	6-12-19 Stower Trail Master Plan ESC Committee
	Res 27-19 Amend 2019 Budget




